STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
Mary Ann Cooney Fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Associate Commissioner
July 30, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION 600, Teoh, J C\O w

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services to amend an existing agreement with Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-P001), 63 Community Way, Keene NH 03431-0603, by increasing the
price limitation by $848 from $266,660 to $267,508 for the provision of Shelter Plus Care Program
services to homeless individuals and families, effective upon Governor and Executive Council with no
change to the contract end date of June 30, 2015. The Governor and Executive Council approved the
original agreement on May 23, 2014 (Item # 36).

Funds are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2015.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

Class/ Title Activity State | Current | Increase/ | Revised
Object Code Fiscal | Modified | Decrease | Modified
Year Budget Budget

102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | 42306165 | 2015 | $266,660 $848 $267,508

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to increase the price limitation of this agreement to conform
with the actual dollar amount that was awarded to the vendor by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development for the provision of Shelter Care Plus program services.

The original agreement approved by the Governor and Executive Council on May 23, 2014
(Item #36), included a prospective amount with the intention of amending the contract if an adjustment
is needed when -the federal government provided official notification of the actual dollar amount
awarded to the community-based vendor. The Department is requesting Governor and Executive
Council approval of the amendment to increase the price limitation by $848 to $267,508 to reflect the
actual amount of the award to the vendor.
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The Department of Health and Human Services is notified by the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development of the grant awards several months after the federal program receives the
communities’ application causing awards to be allocated retroactively. The Department used
prospective amounts for these agreements because when awards are issued retroactively, the
community-based programs receive their funding much later than when the funds are actually needed
for program operations. Awarding these funds retroactively may also result in New Hampshire citizens
who are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless, not receiving the assistance when it is actually
needed.

Vendors utilize U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Shelter Plus Care funds
on a long term basis to provide rental assistance and supportive services to homeless individuals with
disabilities, which include, but are not limited to, severe mental illness, chronic problems with alcohol or
substance abuse, or AIDS and AIDS-related diseases, and their families in order to promote the ability
of participants to live more independently.

Grant awards to communities are subject to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development application and award process. Communities seeking funds from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care program must apply directly to
the federal agency for Shelter Plus Care funds, where their applications are scored by the federal
program based on criteria set forth by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care program. The New Hampshire Department of Health and
Human Services is notified by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development of the grant
awards several months after the federal program receives the communities’ applications, which in some
cases causes the awards to be allocated retroactively. Although law does not mandate the Shelter
Plus Care program, the community-based agencies must follow the federal process to access the
‘funds, which are distributed by the states.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development developed the Continuum of Care
concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing and homelessness
in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main
purposes:

1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing
homelessness on a year-round basis.

3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The Department assures contract compliance and provider performance through the
following:

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars;
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3) All providers funded for transitional housing, permanent housing, or outreach services will
be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will be the primary reporting
tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, rental
assistance and supportive services for people who suffer from severe mental iliness, chronic problems
with alcohol or substance abuse, or AIDS and AlDS-related diseases, and their families who are
homeless may not be available in their communities. This unavailability of assistance will cause an
increase in demand for welfare services on the region’s local welfare authorities. Further, an ongoing
project may not be able to continue, causing many individuals and/or families to become homeless.
People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking shelter in places that are not fit for
habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities. This will increase the likelihood that
people who are homeless will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for
housing, health, education and treatment. Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or
resource agency would have to close its doors or drastically reduce staff.

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Area served: Cheshire, Sullivan and Western Hillsborough Counties

Source of funds: 100% Federal

Respectfully submitted,

Approved by:b* AR

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Continuum of Care Shelter Plus Care Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 1 to the Continuum of Care Shelter Plus Care Program Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Continuum of Care Shelter Plus Care Program contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 17) dated this 28th day of July, 2014, is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a
place of business at 63 Community Way, Keene, NH 03431-0603.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on May 23, 2014 (ltem #36), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may at its sole
discretion, amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties upon Governor and
Executive Council Approval; and

WHEREAS the parties agree to change the scope of services and payment terms; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

To amend as follows:

1.

Form P-37, General Provisions, Item 1.8, to read:
$267,508

Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Shelter Plus Care
Program, to read:

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in
Exhibit A —Shelter Plus Care Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA),
as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.238

Federal Agency:  U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development

CADHHS/100213
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New Hampshire Continuum of Care Shelter Plus Care Program

Program Title: Shelter Plus Care Program
Total Amount Supportive Housing Program;
SFY15: not to exceed $267,508

Funds allocation under this agreement for Shelter Plus Care Program;

Rental Subsidies: $253,836
Administrative costs: $13,672
Total program amount: $267,508

3. Replace Standard Exhibit C, Special Provisions with Exhibit C, Special
Provisions.

4. Replace Exhibit G, Certification Regarding The Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance, with Exhibit G, Certification of Compliance With Requirements
Pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based
Organizations and Whistleblower Protections.

CA/DHHS/100213
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New Hampshire Continuum of Care Shelter Plus Care Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
7

e 4 / W
Date / Mary Arih Choney
Assgciate £ommission

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

July 30, 2014 G?[A MW

Date Na}Ze: John A. Manning

Tit Chief Executive Officer

Acknowledgement:

State of _New Hampshire | County of Cheshire on July 30, 2014 |
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice S thﬁ:P,?ace
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New Hampshire Continuum of Care Shelter Plus Care Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

v/21 /1
Date/ [ Name: Mu%ov\ . V/“?
Title: Mlz 0_1@. A ﬁ‘s@ﬁu
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and

Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3.

Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

10.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations™ and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1.

9.2.

Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

06/27/14
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Exhibit C

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment

Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor [nitials
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Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal reguiations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federai financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. Faise certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
The Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance
6127114 Page 1 of 2 Date [



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

July 30, 2014 CZ)L/J‘”MM

Date Namg: John A. Manning
Titld: Chief Executive Officer
Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials

The Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance
6/27/14 Page 2 of 2 Date _]\?’bl\\k



State of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed May 19, 1965. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 1 hereto
set my hand and cause to be atfixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 11" day of April A.D. 2014

sy Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Elaine M. Amer, Clerk Treasurer , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of _ Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

(Agency Name)
2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on __4/27/12
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the  Chief Executive Officer

{Tille of Contract Signatory)
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 30th dayof  July ,20 14

(Date Contract Signed)
4. John A. Manning is the duly elected __Chief Executive Officer

{(Name of Contract Signatory) {Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

me/m/m (e

7" (Signature of th e\Efeg,ied Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _Cheshire

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _30th day of _July ,20_14

3

By _ Elaine Amer, Clerk Treasurer

{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) M
Ol Lo o
A To"/ , @é‘f& licTlustice of the Peace)

iy, "
/,

\)

\\
ere (1 UIS
,‘?p oER A Y\Q‘f:\\s
4, ’I‘Iqu~a' 453»«"‘ W

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

N
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 712912014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁguEACT
g%rkéoMx%%%nson insurance {ALC No, Ext: 603-352-2121 | FAX o). 603-357-8491
Keene NH 03431 | EMAL . CSsr24@clark-mortenson.com
INSURER(S)} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
iINsURER A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 0
INSURED SOUTHWESTERNCOM insurer B :Maine Employer Mutual Insurance Co.
g%ug&egg)%m Comm Services Inc INSURER C :
Keene NH 03431 INSURERD
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 828796160 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL|SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK 1189961 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE §1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
l CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
POLICY D 5’5‘8{ D Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $2,000,000
OTHER: §
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK118996 1 613012014 B/30/2015 | GOMEINED SINGLELIMIT s 1 50 600
X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) |
ALLQWNED - E@iggx:‘;[; BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
- PROPERTY DAMAGE
HRED AUTOS | X | AUTOR {Per accident) $
$
A | X | UMBRELLA LAB X | occur PHUB462959 B/30/2014 6/30/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $2,000,000
1 DED ‘ X T RETENTION $ 10,000 $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION 3102800768 4/1/2014 4/1/2015 PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN STATUTE 1 ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §500,000
A | Professional Liability PHPK1189961 b/30/2014 6/30/2015 $1,000,000 Per Occurrence
$2,000,000 General Aggregate
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Workers Compensation Statutory coverage provided for State of NH
All Executive Officers are included in the Workers Compensation coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
State of NH Dept. of Health & Human Services Division ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

of Community Based Care Services

129 Pleasant Street-Brown Building

Concord NH 03301-3857 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

S 8. 77008

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc., which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of May 31, 2013
and 2012, and the related combined statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgments, including assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material
respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. as of May 31, 2013
and 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 28, 2014, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community Services, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ron 4. Beawlus ,(’ Co.

Portland, Maine
February 28, 2014



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31,
(RESTATED)
2013 2012
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 223,568 $ 455,760
Accounts receivable (net) 160,511 215,810
Accounts receivable (net) - related 685,444 485,577
Draw receivable (net) 80,404 -
Contracts receivable (net) 623,820 429,916
Notes receivable, current portion (net) - related 4,447 5,838
Prepaid expenses 17,847 15,292
Inventory 149,113 256,953
Total current assets 1,945,154 1,865,146
FIXED ASSETS
Real estate 12,452,359 11,252,170
Vehicles and equipment 891,619 872,379
Furniture and fixtures 20,361 20,361
Total fixed assets 13,364,339 12,144,910
Less - accumulated depreciation (4,155,147) (3,659,159)
Net fixed assets 9,209,192 8,485,751
OTHER ASSETS
Investments in L.P.'s 100,700 100,700
Notes receivable from L.P.'s, less current portion (net) 142,000 142,409
Due from related L.P.'s 263,205 263,205
Accounts receivable from related L.P.'s, less current portion (net) 195,803 45,140
Cash escrow funds 150,136 116,982
Security deposits 15,306 14,367
Other assets 591 660
Total other assets 867,741 683,463
TOTAL ASSETS $ 12,022,087 $ 11,034,360
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 749,783 442 450
Accrued expenses 28,506 -
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 133,537 9,207
Accrued compensated absences 119,350 140,884
Other current liabilities 24,444 27,651
Deferred revenue 275,810 359,313
Line of credit 299,953 299,953
Current portion of long-term debt 93,210 200,573
Total current liabilities 1,724,593 1,480,031
LONG-TERM DEBT, less current portion 7,341,401 6,395,875
TOTAL LIABILTIES 9,065,994 7,875,906
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 2,956,093 3,158,454
TOTAL NET ASSETS 2,956,093 3,158,454
TOTAL LIABILTIES AND NET ASSETS $ 12,022,087 $ 11,034,360

See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED MAY 31,

REVENUES:
Government contracts
Program service fees
Rental income
Developer income
Support
Fundraising
Interest income
Sale of buildings
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets
Realized investment gain (loss)
Gain (loss) on increase in LP investment
Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENSES:

Program services:
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition
Special needs
Housing and homeless services
Economic development services
Other programs

Total program services

Support services:
Management and general
Total support services

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - JUNE 1

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

NET ASSETS - JUNE 1 (RESTATED)

NET ASSETS - MAY 31

(RESTATED)

2013 2012
$ 10,082,596  $ 13,340,183
2,142,000 2,196,888
288,758 628,044
138,250 531,250
334,394 324,103
95,276 98,437
223 1,464
249,000 -
- (5,625)
- (201,358)
371,276 550,000
134,783 215,910
458,086 673,276
14,294,642 18,352,572
4,659,695 5,239,772
2,179,930 2,564,317
786,262 721,838
4,603,230 7,582,404
306,753 327,437
325,719 310,628
12,861,589 16,746,396
1,635,414 1,402,828
1,635,414 1,402,828
14,497,003 18,149,224
(202,361) 203,348
3,158,454 3,098,439
- (143,333)
3,158,454 2,955,106
$ 2,956,093 $ 3,158,454

See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2013

Program Services

Home Education Housing and
Energy and Special Homeless
Programs Nutrition Needs Services

Payroll $ 445150 § 879,518 $ 418,771 $ 1,296,100
Payroll taxes 47,229 127,270 46,971 119,634
Payroll benefits 130,160 331,475 168,623 304,766
Retirement 30,738 56,275 16,964 69,858
Advertising - 1,478 13,260 12,865
Bank charges - - - 2,416
Computer cost - - - -
Contractual 639,599 12,564 29,500 470,644
Depreciation 7,902 11,128 4,322 262,157
Dues/registrations - 4,072 530 2,005
Duplicating 66 - 424 7,867
Insurance 2,234 11,485 5,141 69,968
Interest - - 503 183,439
Management fees - - - 24,150
Meeting & conference - 514 100 11,781
Miscellaneous expense 39,060 923 3,843 314,544
Equipment purchases 783 1,859 - 9,429
Office expense 952 2,853 2,179 -
Postage 12,962 105 147 6,560
Professional 3,500 - - 18,405
Staff development & training 3,569 27,627 3,795 7,064
Subscriptions - - - 257
Telephone 8,174 - 4,249 45,471
Fax - - 17 67
Travel 3,840 18,843 1,964 19,464
Vehicle 12,003 8,744 12,426 52,146
Rent 1,319 - 17,604 2,052
Space costs - 58,045 568 509,389
Direct client assistance 3,269,835 - - 31,837
Other direct program costs 620 167,066 34,361 748,895
In-kind expenses - 458,086 - -
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 4,659,695 § 2,179,930 $ 786,262 $ 4,603,230

See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Payroll benefits
Retirement

Advertising

Bank charges
Computer cost
Contractual
Depreciation
Dues/registration
Duplicating

Insurance

Interest

Management fees
Meeting & conference
Miscellaneous expense
Equipment purchases
Office expense
Postage

Professional

Staff development & training
Subscriptions
Telephone

Fax

Travel

Vehicle

Rent

Space costs

Direct client assistance
Other direct program costs
In-kind expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2013

Support
Program Services Services
Economic
Development Other Management Total
Programs Programs and General Expenses
$ 195,588 $ - $ 804,774 $ 4,039,901
20,221 - 75,848 437,173
52,995 - 103,767 1,091,786
6,155 - 70,254 250,244
128 - (496) 27,235
- - - 2,416
- - 9,302 9,302
- 232,869 90,099 1,475,275
- - 210,548 496,057
30 9,234 2,360 18,231
470 - - 8,827
814 3,884 12,888 106,414
- - 10,109 194,051
- - - 24,150
- 4,913 28,187 45,495
64 11,050 93,986 463,470
754 - - 12,825
- - 701 6,685
813 - - 20,587
- - 93,316 115,221
- - 13,428 55,483
245 - 892 1,394
5,650 667 - 64,211
- - - 84
5,854 - 2,749 52,714
- 45,770 - 131,089
159 - - 21,134
223 9,255 143 577,623
16,590 - - 3,318,262
- 8,077 12,559 971,578
- - - 458,086
$ 306,753 $ 325719 § 1,635414 $ 14,497,003

6

See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to financial statements.



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (RESTATED)

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Payroll benefits
Retirement

Advertising

Bank charges
Computer cost
Contractual
Depreciation
Dues/registrations
Duplicating

Insurance

Interest

Management fees
Meeting & conference
Miscellaneous expense
Equipment purchases
Office expense
Postage

Professional

Staff development & training
Subscnriptions
Telephone

Fax

Travel

Vehicle

Rent

Space costs

Direct client assistance
Other direct program costs
In-kind expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2012

Program Services

Home Education Housing and
Energy and Special Homeless
Programs Nutrition Needs Services

$ 581337 $§ 962599 $ 402,221 $ 1,298,504

53,459 110,843 39,149 110,959

151,105 348,619 131,131 300,164

40,584 63,297 11,510 82,647

494 3,018 - 5,680

- - - 3,480

10,780 - 3,910 19,859

1,032,729 4,045 8,862 3,428,709

7,902 27,108 3,520 266,627

- 87 525 2,256

377 - 784 4,631

10,507 10,708 5,055 120,265

- - 681 196,085

- - - 52,429

7,036 - 70 12,810

1,884 1,311 2,672 47,603

1,172 3,219 - 13,129

14,666 7,141 2,728 22,685

11,586 2,017 113 8,204

- - - 67,119

13,327 15,513 4,818 9,563

- - - 350

13,120 - 3,938 47,739

- - 44 153

2,972 21,684 1,914 19,205
11,646 7,606 11,175 59,371
13,658 - 34,904 25,571

- 67,624 149 605,061

3,258,373 - - 45,066

1,058 234,602 51,965 706,480

- 673,276 - -

$ 5239,772 $ 2,564,317 $ 721,838 $ 7,582,404

7

See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to financial statements.



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (RESTATED)

Payrol!

Payroll taxes

Payroll benefits
Retirement

Advertising

Bank charges
Computer cost
Contractual
Depreciation
Dues/registrations
Duplicating

Insurance

Interest

Management fees
Meeting & conference
Miscellaneous expense
Equipment purchases
Office expense
Postage

Professional

Staff development & training
Subscriptions
Telephone

Fax

Travel

Vehicle

Rent

Space costs

Direct client assistance
Other direct program costs
In-kind expenditures

TOTAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2012

Support
Program Services Services
Economic
Development Other Management Total
Programs Programs and General Expenses
$ 198567 $ 60,612 § 697,170 $ 4,201,010
19,324 3,572 66,211 403,517
60,347 28,170 5,124 1,024,660
7,692 1,937 64,271 271,938
- - 636 9,828
- - - 3,480
1,105 - 37,011 72,665
- 91,631 97,568 4,663,544
- - 199,219 504,376
- 8,649 2,645 14,162
515 - - 6,307
773 4,156 4,809 156,273
- - 9,949 206,715
- - - 52,429
- 15,640 31,142 66,698
464 5,868 51,420 111,222
- - - 17,520
5,356 615 1,568 54,759
324 19 8,001 30,264
- - 46,131 113,250
(100) 437 14,582 58,140
426 - 1,955 2,731
7,246 1,910 6,209 80,162
- - - 197
9,026 1,767 2,251 58,819
- 50,031 71 139,900
1,747 24,000 - 99,880
266 8,702 940 682,742
13,954 668 - 3,318,061
405 2,244 53,945 1,050,699
- - - 673,276
$ 327437 § 310,628 $ 1,402,828 $ 18,149,224

8

See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to financial statements.



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED MAY 31,
(RESTATED)
2013 2012
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ (202,361) $ 203,348
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 495,988 504,307
Amortization 69 69
(Gain) / loss on sale of fixed assets - 5,625
(Gain) / loss on sale of investments - -
(Gain) / loss on increase in LP investment - 201,358
(Gain) / loss on forgiveness of debt (371,276) (550,000)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 55,299 79,423
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable - related (199,867) 259,073
(Increase) decrease in draw receivable (80,404) -
(Increase) decrease in contracts receivable (193,904) 319,430
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (2,555) (13,587)
(Increase) decrease in inventory 107,840 (256,953)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, less curr. port. - related (150,663) 45,140
(Increase) decrease in due from related limited partnerships - 25,123
(Increase) decrease in escrow funds (33,154) 8,393
(Increase) decrease in security deposits (939) (14,367)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 307,333 (174,176)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 28,506 -
Increase (decrease) in accrued payrolt 124,330 (196,028)
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences (21,534) (11,542)
Increase (decrease}) in other current liabilities (3,207) 24,789
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (83,502) (145,985)
Increase (decrease) in line of credit - 50,000
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (224,001) 363,440
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (1,219,430) (77,173)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 144,375
(Increase) decrease in notes receivable 1,800 772
Proceeds from sale of investments - -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,217,630) 67,974
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term debt 1,305,314 -
Payments on long-term debt (95,875) (98,250)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,209,439 (98,250)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (232,192) 333,164
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 1 455,760 122,596
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - MAY 31 $ 223,568 $ 455,760
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 184,186 $ 196,886

See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Corporation) is an umbrella corporation
that offers an array of services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in
the Cheshire and Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide
assistance in the areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its
conservation, housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Management Corp., SCS Housing, Inc., Drewsville Carriage House Associates, LP,
North Walpole Village Housing Associates, LP, and Troy Common Associates, LP. The
Corporation is committed to providing respectful support service and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the
causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental
contracts.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The financial statements
include the accounts of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Management
Corp., SCS Housing, Inc. The three corporations are combined because Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. controls more than 50% of the voting power. All significant
intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic financial
statements.

Drewsville Carriage House Associates, LP, North Walpole Village Housing Associates,
LP, and Troy Common Associates, LP have been consolidated with the Corporation
because the Corporation owns 100% of the voting power. All significant intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic financial statements.

Cash Equivalents

The Corporation considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The accounts receivable allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon an analysis of
the aged accounts receivable listing.

The accounts receivable - related allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon an
analysis of the aged accounts receivable listing.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The contracts receivable allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon management’s
assessment of the credit history with customers having outstanding balances and

current relationships with them.

The notes receivable allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon an analysis of the
aged notes receivable listing.

[nventory

Materials are valued at the lower of cost or market, using the first-in, first-out method.
Fixed Assets

Fixed assets acquired by the Corporation are capitalized at cost or, if donated, at the

approximate value at the date of donation. It is the policy of the Corporation to capitalize
all fixed assets over $5,000.

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line or
accelerated method.

Deferred Revenue

The Corporation records grant and contract revenue as deferred revenue until it is
expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is recognized as
revenue.

In-kind Support

The Corporation records various types of in-kind support including professional services
and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the service received
creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized skill, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are recognized at fair value when
received.

Advertising

The Corporation uses advertising to promote programs among the people it serves. The
production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 2 - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Nature of Operations

The Corporation is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Corporation are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal,
state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules, and
regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or Legislature. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including
the additional administrative burden, to comply with a change.

Current Vulnerabilities Due to Certain Concentrations

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., maintains its cash balances in various
financial institutions. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation and the balances may exceed the insured limit. It is the opinion of
management that the solvency of the referenced financial institution is of no particular
concern at this time.

A large percentage of the Corporations’ revenues are from two contractors, the Federal
Government and the State Government. It is always considered to be at least
reasonably possible that any contractor could be lost in the near term, but management
feels this risk is of no particular concern at this time.

Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant Estimates

None of the estimates used in preparing the financial statements are considered
significant.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts and contracts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to

collect from balances outstanding at year-end. Allowance for doubtful accounts was
estimated at $0 and $0, on May 31, 2013 and 2012.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 4 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable are stated at the amount that is expected to be collected at year-end.
Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis.

The allowance for loan loss has been estimated at $0 and $0 as of May 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at their fair value at year end. Although the Corporation
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement
at year end.

The fair value measurement establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy has three levels
which are described below.

Level 1 Fair Value Measurements

The fair values of investments are based on the closing price reported on the active
market where the individual securities are traded.

Level 2 Fair Value Measurements

The fair values of investments are based on the market approach using quoted prices
reported on the active market for similar assets, or they are based on the market
approach using quoted prices reported on a market that is not active for identical or
similar assets.

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of certain investments which are not actively traded and significant other

observable inputs are not available. In this case, management decides what the best
valuation technique to use is.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 5- INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The investments of the Corporation consisted of the following as of May 31,:

May 31, 2013

Quoted

prices in

active Significant

markets for other Significant un-

identical observable  observable

assets inputs inputs
Description Cost Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Limited partnerships 100,700 100,700 - - 100,700

Total $ 100,700 $ 100,700 § - - $§ 100,700
May 31, 2012

Quoted

prices in

active Significant

markets for other Significant un-

identical observable  observable

assets inputs inputs
Description Cost Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Limited partnerships 100,700 100,700 - - 100,700

Total $ 100,700 § 100,700 § - § - $ 100,700

The activities of the Corporation’s investments account are summarized as follows:

2013 2012
Fair Value - June 1 $ 100,700 $ 100,500
Investment income - -
Investment fees - -
Additions - 200
Distributions - -
Realized gains (losses) - -
Unrealized gains (losses) - -
Fair Value - May 31 $ 100,700 $ 100,700

NOTE 6 - PLEDGED ASSETS
The following are the assets used as collateral:

Fixed Assets $13,343,978
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 7 - LINE OF CREDIT

An available $250,000 revolving line of credit existed at years ending May 31, 2013 and
2012. Interest was charged at 4.00% and the outstanding balance at years end was
$249,953 and $249,953, respectively.

An available $50,000 revolving line of credit existed at years ending May 31, 2013 and
2012. Interest was charged at 4.00% and the outstanding balance at years end was
$50,000 and $50,000, respectively.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following as of May 31,:
2013 2012

1.00% mortgage payable to NH Housing Finance Authority,
secured by real estate, payable in monthly installments of
$891 including interest through 2032. $ 199437 §$ 207,370

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to Community
Development Finance Authority, secured by real estate,
quarterly principal payments based on operating income
formula applied to affordable housing portion of the specified
real estate. 32,147 32,147

3.25% note payable to bank, secured by real estate, payable
in monthly installments of $959 including interest through
March 2021. 78,659 87,215

0.00% mortgage payable to NH Housing Finance secured by
real estate. Payment is deferred for 30 years or until project is
sold or refinanced. 250,000 250,000

0.00% mortgage payable to NH Housing Finance secured by
real estate. Payment is deferred for 30 years or until project is
sold or refinanced. 408,300 408,300

7.25% mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate,
payable in monthly installments of $2,246 including interest
through 2017. 232,171 241,373

10.00% note payable to bank, secured by vehicle, payable in
monthly installments of $407 including interest through 2013. - 1,970

0.00% note payable to bank secured by vehicle, payable in
monthly installments of $590 through 2013. - 2,359

0.00% note payable to bank secured by vehicle, payable in
monthly instaliments of $421 through 2013. - 1,682
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service, secured by
real estate, payable in monthly installments of $11,050
including interest through 2049.

0.00% note payable to Cheshire County, secured by real
estate, payment is not necessary unless the Corporation
defaults on the contract.

4.00% note payable to Railroad Land Development, LLC,
secured by real estate, payable in interest only annual
installments with a final balloon payment of entire principal
balance in March of 2015.

4.00% note payable to Monadnock Economic Development
Corporation, secured by real estate, payable in interest only
annual installments with a final balloon payment of entire
principal balance in March of 2015.

14.65% note payable to GMAC, secured by personal property,
payable in monthly installments of $299 including interest
through 2014.

5.2% note payable to bank, secured by real estate payable in
$2,769 monthly installments including interest through May of
2014. Beginning in May 2014 payments and interest will be
adjusted every five years based on remaining principal
balance and "Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston through May 2039.

6.99% note payable to bank secured by vehicle, payable in
monthly installments of $560 through 2014.

5.95% note payable to bank, secured by real estate, payable
in monthly installments of $934 including interest through
2031.

1.00% note payable to Town of Walpole, New Hampshire,
secured by real estate, accrued interest and principal are due
on August 2026.

6.00% note payable to bank, secured by real estate, payable
in monthly installments of $1,351 including interest through
April 2016 with a ballon payment of $123,000.
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2013 2012
$ 2,400,973 § 2,427,889
460,000 460,000
63,000 63,000
45,000 45,000
1,687 4,773
469,007 476,950
9,049 14,898
123,213 126,562
- 367,600
144,887 152,175



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2013 2012

1.00% note payable to Town of Walpole, New Hampshire,
secured by real estate, accrued interest and principal are due

on December 2025. $ 378,961 $ 375,911
7.00% note payable to bank, secured by real estate, payable
in monthly installments of $807 including interest through

December 2025. 84,614 88,148
1.00% note payable to Town of Troy, New Hampshire,
secured by real estate, accrued interest and principal are due

on November 2025. 364,265 361,126
0.00% loan payable to United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development, secured by real estate, no payment
is due as long as the property is used for low income housing
for 20 years. After 10 years, 10% loan will be forgiven per

year. The loan will be fully amortized by January 2026. 250,000 250,000
0.00% loan payable to United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development, secured by real estate, no payment
is due as long as the property is used for low income housing
for 20 years. After 10 years, 10% loan will be forgiven per

year. The loan will be fully amortized by January 2025. 150,000 150,000
0.00% note payable to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority, secured by real estate, payable in yearly payments
in the amount of 50% of annual surplus cash. The remaining

balance is due on July 2032. 800,000 -
0.00% note payable to County of Cheshire, secured by real
estate, of which 5% of the balance is forgiven each year. The

remaining balance is due December 31, 2032. 470,000 -
3.99% note payable to bank, secured by personal property,
payable in monthly installments of $385 including interest

through 2018. 19,241 -

$ 7,434,611 § 6,596,448

Current portion 93,210 200,573

Long-term portion 7,341,401 6,395,875

$ 7,434,611 $ 6,596,448
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Principal maturities of long-term debt in each of the next five years, are as follows:

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

NOTE 9 - UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

$ 93,210
199,712

214,274
271,864

78,726

None of the Corporation’s net assets are subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Accordingly, all net assets are accounted for as unrestricted net assets.

NOTE 10 - OPERATING LEASES

The following is a summary of the outstanding operating leases payable:

The Corporation leases five automobiles under non-cancelable lease agreements. The terms

of the leases are as follows:

Monthly payments
$ 668
521
416
341
580

Future minimum monthly payments under the leases are as follows:

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
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$ 24,968
16,434
4,640

Expiration Date

September 2013
August 2014
March 2015
April 2015
January 2016



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENCY

SCS Housing, Inc. is the general partner in fifteen limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing Tax
Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SCS Housing, Inc. have
guaranteed repayment of twelve partnerships liabilities in the amount of $28,136,893.
Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $55,746,514 provides
collateral on these loans.

NOTE 12 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended May 31, 2013, SCS Housing, Inc. managed twelve limited
partnerships and had a Brother-Sister relationship with those limited partnerships. Fees
charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled $305,641.

During the year ended May 31, 2012, SCS Housing, Inc. managed twelve limited
partnerships and had a Brother-Sister relationship with those limited partnerships. Fees
charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled $300,827.

NOTE 13 - PENSION PLAN

The Corporation has a defined contribution pension plan offering coverage to all of its
employees. The pension expense for the years ended May 31, 2013 and 2012, was
$250,777 and $273,275, respectively. The plan is a tax-sheltered annuity which is
funded by employee contributions and a Corporation match of the employee’s
contributions.

NOTE 14 - INCOME TAXES

The Corporation and SCS Management Corp. qualified as an organization exempt from
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Management
believes there is no tax on unrelated business income, therefore no income tax
provisions have been made in the accompanying financial statements.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a C Corporation and is subject to income tax. Management does
not believe this entity will have taxable income as there is net operating loss carryover
for $586,369 and therefore there is no tax provision.

Drewsville Carriage House Associates, LP, North Walpole Village Housing Associates,
LP, and Troy Common Associates, LP are partnerships and do not pay taxes on their
income. Rather, the partners will pay the taxes on the partnership net income.

The corporations and partnerships are no longer subject to examinations by compliance
authorities for years before 2010.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 15 - RESTATEMENT

On the 2012 Statement of Financial Position, inventory was increased by $256,953 and
deferred revenue was increased by $78,704 to record three rehabilitations of buildings
that had not been sold by May 31, 2012. Deferred revenue was decreased by $400,000
and Long-term debt was increased by $400,000 for the reclassification of two loans.
Deferred revenue was also increased by $26,667 for the removal of amortization of two
loans.

On the 2012 Statement of Activities, the government contracts decreased by $105,371
and the following expenses were decreased for the year ended May 31, 2012:

Payroll $ 15,937
Payroll taxes 1,514
Payroll benefits 1,162
Retirement 1,337
Insurance 1,338
Travel 318
Other direct program costs 235,347

Total $ 256,953

NOTE 16 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

In 2011 and prior years, there was amortization of two loans for $143,333, which should
not have been posted until 2015 and later. Deferred revenue was increased by
$143,333 to remove the amortization that was posted.

NOTE 17 - MANAGEMENT REVIEW
Management has reviewed subsequent events as of February 28, 2014, the date the

financial statements were available to be issued. At that time, there were no material
subsequent events.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited the financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. as of and
for the year ended May 31, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2014.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered Southwestern Community Services, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and
therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to
be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be material weaknesses. (2013-1 and
2013-2)
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are
described in accompanying schedule of findings and responses. We did not audit Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors,

management, others within the entity, and legislative or regulatory bodies and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Row 4. Beawliio ,(’ Co.

Portland, Maine
February 28, 2014
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2013

2013-1 Inventory — Work in Process

Condition: Control systems did not prevent, or detect and correct a material
misstatement that was identified by the auditor. Specifically, management did not
account for inventory properly as an asset.

Criteria: Per Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, FASB Accounting Standards
Codification 330-10-30-1, Inventory Cost, as applied to inventories, cost means the sum

of applicable expenditures and charges directly or indirectly incurred in bringing an
article to its existing condition and location.

Cause: Error in applying Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Effect: A material correcting journal entry was proposed by the auditor to increase
inventory and decrease expenses.

Recommendation: Review the criteria above and incorporate it into the accounting
process.

Response: Agree

Action Taken: We will review and incorporate into its accounting process FASB
Accounting Standards Codification 330-10-30-1.

2013-2 Various asset, liability, and equity accounts

Condition: Control systems did not prevent, or detect and correct material misstatements
that were identified by the auditor. Specifically, management did not reconcile various
asset, liability, and equity accounts.

Criteria: Best accounting practices.

Cause: The Internal Control Document does not require reconciliations of accounts
outside of cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payable.

Effect: Various material adjustments were proposed by the auditor to increase and
decrease various asset, liability, and equity accounts.

Recommendation: Implement a policy that requires the Chief Financial Officer or Fiscal
Director to reconcile the accounts outside of cash, accounts receivable, and accounts
payable, at least, at year end.

Response: Agree
Action Taken: The CFO and/or Fiscal Director will bring to the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors the current Internal Control Document for review with a

recommendation to implement a policy for reconciliations of accounts outside of cash,
accounts receivable and accounts payable, at least, at year end.
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Summary

Experience

Education

Organizations

John A. Manning

Over 30 years of experience with non-profit organizations, as both an
outside auditor and presently Chief Financiat Officer of a large
community action agency.

1990-Present Southwestern Community Services Inc.
Keene, NH
Chief Financial Officer

Oversees all fiscal functions for a community action agency providing
services to low and moderate income individuals. Programs include Head
Start, Fuel Assistance, and mulliple affordable housing projects.
Supervises a staff of 7, with an agency budget of over $ 13,000,000. Also
oversees agency property management department, which manages
over 300 units of affordable housing.

1985-1995 Keene State College Keene, NH
Adjunct Professor .

Taught evening accounting classes for their continuing education
program.

1978-1990 John A. Manning, Keene, NH

Certified Public Accountant

Provided public accounting services to small and medium sized clients,
including multiple non-profit organizations. Performed certified audits on
several clients, including Head Start and other non-profit clients

1975-1978 Kostin and Co. CPA’s West Hartford, Ct.

Staff Accountant

Performed all aspects of public accounting for medium sized accounting
firm. Audited large number of privately held and non-profit clients.

1971-1975 University of Mass. Ambherst, Ma.
= B.S. Business Administration in Accounting

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
NH Society of Certified Public Accountants



WILLIAM A. MARCELLO

Work Experience:

November 1977 — Present

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Executive Director
Responsible for overall supervision, management, monitoring, and fiscal review
of 35 Social Service Programs providing services to low-income, elderly, and
disabled residents of Sullivan and Cheshire counties in New Hampshire.

Funding:
Federal, Private Grants, and State and Local Government funding from more than

50 sources, totaling over $7,000,000 cash flow per yearly basis.

Affordable Housing Program:
Number of Housing Units: 180 Family and Elderly
Commercial Space: Four properties (150,000 sq. ft. of rental space)

Project Funding: Over $21,000,000

Staff Size:
Senior Staff: 10 Managers
Agency Staff: 150

September 1974 — November 1977:
SCS, Inc., Deputy Director
Designed, implemented and directed:
1) Women’s, Infants’ and Children’s (WIC) Program:

Presently 12 staff, 2,600 participants and funded at:
Program Support - $300,000 Food Vouchers - $1,500,000

2) Food Stamp Distribution Program:
7 Staff, 3,000 households, funded at:
" Program Support - $§175,000 Food Stamps Issued - $2,400,000

February 1969 — September 1974:

Involved in Education / Counseling Programs for the Agency:

1970 - 75 Head Start Director:
Three Centers, 140 Children ages 3-5

1971 — 1975 Director, Sullivan / Cheshire County Day Care Program
Three Centers, 68 Children ages 3-5



1973 — 1975 Education Coordinator ~ Head Start Program, Day Care Program

1974 Summer Director Neighborhood Youth Corps Program
350 Low-income youths, 10 Counselors

1973 Director Adult Continuing Education Program

1969 — 1970 Head Start Teacher — 5-year-olds Class
21 Low-income youths, 1 Teacher Aide

1969 Summer Neighborhood Youth Corps Program Counselor
90 Teenagers, Cheshire County

Education:

1970 - 1971 University of Massachusetts, Amherst
Masters Program — Early Childhood Education
15 Credits

1966 — 1969 Keene State College, Keene, NH
Bachelor of Education, 1969

Organizations:

Active participation in numerous civic and professional organizations, locally, statewide
and throughout New England.



Laurie J. Tyler

Qualifications

Successful fundraising and grant writing skills

Managing mutiple Housing Units and Programs

Twenty years experience in leadership and administration
Strong written and oral communication ability

Strong work ethic and a self-driven passion for the cause

Professional Experience

Director of Homeless Services Program Development December 2000 — present
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH

e Directed and maintained staff of 16 employees and volunteers while over seeing six homeless
shelters with 140+ beds within two counties. Assure quality of services provided for up to 500
Homeless individuals/families with shelter and/or voucher programs.

e  Grant writing for programs such as LTTHP, SCLTTHP, EHS, SSVF, Rapid Re-housing S+C, etc.
Have been awarded more than $2.5mil in Grants that are renewed via competitive proposals.

s  Brick & Mortar Federal Grants for Construction/Acquisitions Monies. Awarded more than $2.3mil
in monies for Shelter, PHP and 2~° Chance Programs.

e Fund Raising Charitable Contributions. Worked with business and agencies (FEMA, PSNH,
Monadnock United Way, Walmart, Sprinkler Funds and Private Donors) to receive in excess of
$130k in miscellaneous awards and private donations.

o  Experienced with Grants that are renewed via competitive proposals, fundraising programs and
compliance reporting (to include private/public foundations, local/state/federal government)

e  Assure compliance with Federal, State, Local, legal and funding requirements. Participate in
Community/Professional Networking events including conference trainings and public speaking.

Administrative Assistant/Assistant Office Manager May 1995 —Jan 2001
Monadnock Area Psychotherapy & Spirituality Services, Keene, NH
¢ Manage office staff and maintenance employees. Coordinate and manage efficient procedures for
successful office operations and client intake and assignment administration
e  Monitor cash flow by managing accounts receivable and accounts payable.
s Establish and maintain successful billing and tracking system. Prepare and analyze monthly and
yearly financial statements to include yearly budget preparation.
Office Manager 1988-1995
Khouw & Post Professional Association, Keene, NH
e  Prepared and analyzed monthly and yearly financial statements. Monitored cash flow by managing
accounts receivable and accounts payable.
e Trained and supervised clerical staff. Managed and monitored personnel policies and benefits.

Education
_»  Bachelor of Science, Management, Franklin Pierce College, Keene, NH

o 3.68 G.P.A., Magna Cum Laude, Management Departmental Honors
¢ Giving Monadnock Non-Profit Fundraising Institute, Antioch College, Keene, NH

o Cerification on stimulating, promoting, and inspiring an increased level of philanthropy.
« Leadership Development Training, Tad Dwyer, Keene, NH

Other
s Experienced with both IBM PC’s and Macintosh Computers with proficienies in MS Word,

Quickbooks, and Excel. .
e Annual trainings in CP], Blood borne Pathogens, Mental Health, Substance Abuse, Brain Injuries,

Military Culture, Housing 101, Case Management, etc.
e  Published article in college science textbook.



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
John A. Manning Acting Chief Executive $107,016 0.00% $0.00
Officer
William A. Marcello | Chief Executive Officer $117,353 0.00% $0.00
Laurie Tyler Program Director $44,616 0.00% $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 6[‘)
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Mary Ann Cooney Fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.

i ban Gy G&LC Approved
April21,ZB1°lte 5[6\?)'/((“/

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council ftem # (%
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTE.DACTION o5 ) 217»( M

Authonize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services to enter into agreements with the vendors listed in the table below to
provide Sheiter Plus Care Program services to homeless individuals and families in an amount not to
exceed $593,876 effective the dates indicated in the table below upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through the completion dates indicated in the table below.

Vendor . Effective Completion
Vendor / Number Location Date Date Amount
Center for Life 174116-P001 | Derry 09/01/2014 | 08/31/2015 | $260,970
Management
Center for Life 174116-P001 | Berlin & Derry | 12/01/2014 | 11/30/2015 | $66,246
Management
Cheshire,
. Sullivan and
§°;‘J::‘g:s:‘f‘£" Community | 177511.p001 | Western 07/01/2014 | 06/30/2015 | $266,660
€ R Hillsborough
Counties
' Total: $593,876

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2015, and anticipated to be
available in State Fiscal Year 2016, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, without Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

See attachment for fiscal details and areas served



Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 4

EXPLANATION

The Department has participated in over twenty (20) rounds of disbursing federal awards to
local communities for the Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care program. Experience has informed the
Departmenhrrthe ablllty to estimate the followmg year's grant awards based on the community-based
‘agencies’ preVIous year's applications to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Therefore, the grant awards that are contracted for Sheiter Plus Care program funds are contracted
prospectively with the intention.of amending those contracts needing adjustment when the federal
. government- provides -official notification of the dollar amounts awarded to the community-based
agencies. When awards are. issyed retroactively, the result is community-based programs receiving
funds much fater than when the funds are actually needed for program operations. Funds awarded
retroactively can result in New Hampshire citizens who are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless,
not receiving the assistance when it is actually needed.

The Department is presenting these contracts to the Governor and Executive Council for
approval as a group in an effort to consolidate administrative work and minimize the duplication of
efforts when preparing items for the Department of Administrative Services to review and for the
Governor and Executive Council to approve.

This package includes three (3) vendors receiving a competitive award for renewal funding.
Vendors will utilize U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Shelter Plus Care funds on a
long term basis to provide rental assistance and supportive services to homeless individuals with
disabilities, which include, but are not limited to, severe mental illness, chronic problems with alcohol or
substance abuse, or AIDS and AIDS-related diseases, and their families in order to promote the ability
of participants to live more independently. ‘

Regardless of when the communities applied for program funding, the Department cannot begin
new contracts with the community-based agencies prior to their current contractual end date. This
package contains contracts with different grant periods because the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development sets the grant period based upon the execution date of the Grant Agreement.
Further, one community-based agency, Center for Life Management, applied for more than one grant
due to the locations to which the funds awarded will be allocated. This vendor provides homeless
services to multiple towns and cities while operating a main office for the administration of the funds
that are awarded to individual community-based agencies.

Grant awards to communities were subject to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development application and award process. Communities seeking funds from the U.S. Department of

“Housing and Urban Development Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care program must apply directlyto™

the federal agency for Shelter Plus Care funds, where their applications are scored by the federal
program based on criteria set forth by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care program. The New Hampshire Department of Health and
Human Services is notified by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development of the grant
awards several months after the federal program receives the communities’ applications, which in some
cases causes the awards to be allocated retroactively. Although law does not mandate the Shelter
Plus Care program, the community-based agencies must follow the federal process to access the
funds, which are distributed by the states.



Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 3 of 4

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development developed the Continuum of Care
concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing and homelessness
in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main
purposes:

1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing
homelessness on a year-round basis.

3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Départment of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The Department assures contract compliance and provider performance through the
following: ,

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars;

3) All providers funded for transitional housing, permanent housing, or outreach services will
be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will be the primary reporting
too! for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, rental
assistance and supportive services for people who suffer from severe mental illness, chronic problems
with alcohol or substance abuse, or AIDS and AlIDS-related diseases, and their families who are
homeless may not be available in their communities. This unavailability of assistance will cause an
increase in demand for welfare services on the region’s local welfare authorities. Further, an ongoing
project may not be able to continue, causing many individuals and/or families to become homeless.
People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking shelter in places that are not fit for
habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other communities. This will increase the likelihood that
people who are homeless will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for
housing, health, education and treatment. Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or
resource agency would have to close its doors or drastically reduce staff.



Her Exceliency, Margaret Wood Hassan
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~In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Area served: Berlin and Derry, NH; Cheshire, Sullivan and Western Hillsborough Counties

Source of funds: 100% Federal

Respectfully submitted,

g _
Mary Ahn Cooney%

Agsogiate Commissioner

S
Approved by: -

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care Program

Center for Life Management - SPC | (Vendor # 174116-P001)

Area Served: Derry

Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Contract
Year Amount
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306165 2015 $217,475
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306165 2016 $43,495
Sub-total $260,970
Center for Life Management - SPC ll (Vendor # 174116-P001)
Area Served: Berlin & Derry
. - State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
Contracts for
102-5007 31 ‘ Program Services 42306165 2015 $38,644
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306165 2016 $27,602
Sub-total $66,246

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-P001)

Areas Served: Cheshire, Sullivan & Western Hilisborough Counties

. - State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
Contracts for
102-500731 Program Services 42306165 2015 $266,660
Sub-total $266,660
Total $593,876

Continuum of Care
financial Detail - SPC
Page 1 0f1




A
| FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care Shelter Plus Care Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
63 Community Way
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. P.0.Box 603
Keene, NH 03431-0603
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date | 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
(603) 352-7512 05-95-42-423010-7927 June 30, 2015 $266,660.00
102-500731
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603) 271-9558
ctor S|gnatu re 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
John A. Manning
M Acting Chief Executive Officer

1.13 knowledgement State of__NH_, County of Cheshire

4/ 7/ 1[Bcfore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose na|r'ne is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s’he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
112, awihihiag,,

otary or Justice of the Peace
S

f‘% “Tomling Nt Y

n's\

1.1 State gency Signature

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

) il )‘Mzo Aﬁﬁm /\C/«-b

_—
1.16  Approval by/‘ym.ﬁ. Departmefit of/Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 roval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

OH000 o si#H

1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:

Page 1of 4
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-2 EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
& PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5:2-The payment-by the-State-of the contract-price-shal -be-the- -

only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. ’

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State

——employee orofficial; who-is-materially-invel ved-in-the —- -~

procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

88 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of| this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

[4.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer -
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
indurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification

" of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such

--amendment;-waiver-or-discharge by-the Governor-and--—-
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS,
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Shelter Plus Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Sheliter Plus Care Program

The Contractor shall provide tenant-based rental subsidies and the equivalent supportive
services in accordance with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Shelter Plus Care Program. The Shelter Plus Care Program is principally governed under 24
CFR 578. Shelter Plus Care is a HUD-funded rental assistance program designed to provide
housing and supportive services on a long-term basis for persons with disabilities (primarily
those with severe mental iliness, chronic problems with alcohol and/or substance abuse, or
AIDS or related diseases) and their families who are homeless as defined by HUD in the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, 42USC11302 and as amended by the Housing
Emergency and Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH) Act of 2008.

1. Conditional Nature of Agreement

1.1. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Sheiter Plus Care Grant /
Program. The State has applied for the Continuum of Care Shelter Plus Care Grant
and will continue to perform due diligence in the application process. However, the
State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the State
be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor
prior to the State’s receipt of federal funds applied for in the Shelter Plus Care Grant.

2. Services

2.1. The Contractor agrees to comply with the program narratives in the application
submitted to HUD. The Contractor shall directly provide tenant-based subsidies to 23
or more homeless individuals and families, and the equivalent supportive services in
accordance with the rules and regulations of HUD's Shelter Plus Care Program.

2.2. To be eligible for services, participant households must consist of at least one disabled
member, and must be homeless as defined in HUD regulations 24 CRF 578. The
Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation.

2.3. The Contractor shall make all appropriate referrals as needed by applicants.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state confidentiality taws and
follow the Shelter Plus Care Policies and Procedures guide.

2.5. Over the one-year period, the Contractor shall provide the following services as outlined
in the application for funding:

2.5.1. Rental subsidies for 23 individuals and families in accordance with the rules and
regulations of HUD’s Tenant-Based Shelter Plus Care Program; and

2.5.2. Supportive services as defined by 24 CFR 578 to each individual and/or family in
an equivalent monetary value to the individual’s and/or family’s subsidy.

- 3. Program Reporting Requirements
3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Completion
Date, an (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that summarizes the measured

KMW/ODHHS/032814 Exhibit A Contractor Initals
Southwestern Commumity Scrvices Page 10of 3 i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Shelter Plus Care Program

Exhibit A

4.

3.2.

3.3.

outcomes relative to HUD’s performance measured goals. The APR shall be in
the form required by HUD and the State.

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS).
Programs under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time
required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through
the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the BHHS.

Contract Administration

41.

4.2.

43.

4.4.

45,

The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with contractor performance. The Contractor shall cooperate fully and answer
all questions during any periodic or special review of performance, or any inspection of
program records or performance.

The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes within 30 days of the
change.

Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of
the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising therefrom are resolved, whichever is later.

Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

Financial

5.1.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program agreement value specified in Exhibit B of this agreement
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

~ 5.1.1. Rental Subsidies;

5.1.2. Administrative costs

Eligible Administrative Costs include: general management, oversight, and
coordination cost, as well as costs of overall program management and the
associated costs of coordination, monitoring, and evaluation. These costs
include, but are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following: salaries,
wages, and related costs of the recipient's staff, the staff of sub-recipients, or
other staff engaged in program administration. In charging costs to this category,
the recipient may include the pro rata share of the salary, wages, and related
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costs of each person whose job includes any program administration
assignments. The recipient may use only one of these methods for each fiscal
year grant. Also included are the costs of preparing program budgets and
schedules, and amendments to those budgets and schedules; Developing
systems for assuring compliance with program requirements; Other costs for
goods and services required for administration of the program, including rental or
purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance (but not purchase) of office space. Also included are costs of
providing training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
sponsored Continuum of Care trainings.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies. The Contractor is required to provide supportive services equivalent to (if
not more than) the amount of rental assistance provided through this contract.

KM/DHHS/032814 Exhibit A Contractor Inttials
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Shelter Plus Care Program
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —Shelter
Pius Care Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.238

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Shelter Plus Care Program

Total Amount Supportive Housing Program;

SFY15: not to exceed $266,660

Funds allocation under this agreement for Shelter Plus Care Program;

Rental Subsidies: $259,824.00
Administrative costs: $6,836.00
Total program amount: $266,660.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for rental subsidies and administration utilizing funds provided through the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Sheiter Care Plus Program, in
an amount not to exceed $266,660.00 and for the time period July 1, 2014 through June 30,
2015.

2. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

2.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs™ shall mean those
costs associated with providing rental assistance for eligible clients, meet the
requirements of 24 CFR 578, and are allowable as set forth in OMB Circular A-87.

2.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor the amount not to exceed
the amount of 1.8 of the General Provisions of this Agreement. The State agrees to

- provide funds for rental subsidies for €ligible clients and administrative costs that meet -
the requirements of 24 CFR 578 and any other applicable Shelter Plus Care
regulations.

2.3. Schedule of Payments: The Contractor shall submit monthly documentation of
expenditures of federal funds for rental subsidies for eligible clients in such a fashion as
to allow the State to draw down federal funds from the Line of Credit Control System
(LOCCS) in a manner that enables the Contractor to issue checks to the landlords in a
timely way.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor initials
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3. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.

3.1. Conformance to 24 CFR Part 578: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR 578.

4. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

4.1. Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be transferred between
line items as appears on the budget page without prior written authorization from the
State. Any expenditure that exceeds the approved budget shalil be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor. However, the transfer of other funds may cover such
excess expenditures where such transfer is permissible by this Agreement. In any
event, the Contractor shall be required to continue providing the services specified in
this agreement. The Contractor shall make no adjustments so as to incur additional
expenses in State-funded programs in subsequent years without prior written
authorization from the State.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shalt be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all foorms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
.- —_herein contained.shall be deemed to.obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to'ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to: .
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for matenals, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: in addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shail be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor’s responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the foIIowmg reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shali terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the

— -—operation-of-the-facility or-the provision-of-the-services-at-such facility.-lf-any govermmental license or ..

permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,

the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the

Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall

comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and

the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s perfformance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shalil have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shali mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the

Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as

they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISION

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested. '

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
© T T about the transition. The Contractor shall “include the proposed communications i its™
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence with additional
general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $1,000,000; and

;
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitie D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part I of the May 25, 1930 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or viotation of the centification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace,

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2, Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction; .

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, uniess the Federal agency

i
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the foliowing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check 1 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

4/7/14 @ﬂ/vw

Date Na?é: John 4. Manning

Tit:  Acting Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law. 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Termporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-i.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for

each such failure.

Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services Inc.

a7

Date Narg®: John' A. Manning
Title: Acting Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction. .

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
*voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this_ proposal that it will include the

clause titled-“Certification-Regarding Debamment-Suspension Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - __ .
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covere
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauit.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a crimina! offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appiication/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Pant 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal depariment or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Cerlification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services Inc.

4/7/14 /)4%%

Date e: Jb6hn A. Manning
'e: Acting Chief Executive Officer
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services Inc.

[ fommis

Naple: John A. Manning
Acting Chief Executive Officer

04/07/14
Date
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